
PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 
Called by:  Burt Gerl, Chairman DATE: WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2021 
Members:  Aaron Booker, Brad  TIME: 5:30 PM 
Lindmark, Tim Nabors, Angie Goral, 
Kevin McCarthy, Dorothy Redd 

LOCATION:   VIRTUAL MEETING - ZOOM 
(WINNEBAGO COUNTY YOUTUBE 
LIVE) 
 

The Winnebago County Board Chairman has determined that an in-person meeting is not 
practicable or prudent because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
AGENDA:  
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of October 1 and 15, 2020 Public Safety Committee Minutes 

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and 
Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three 
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will 
allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers 
may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or 
the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed 
in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the 
same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on 
what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and 
state your name.  Thank you. 

E. Animal Services Ordinance Amending Section 14-116 Fee Schedule                 
 

F. Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission Strategic Plan 2020-2023 
  

G. Preapproved Reimbursement for Court Technology Upgrades 
 

H. Other Matters 
 
I. Adjournment 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 

(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 
 

Thursday, October 1, 2020 
 5:30 PM 

 
Present: Others Present: 
Aaron Booker, Chairman 
Angie Goral 
Dan Fellars 
Dorothy Redd 
Paul Arena 
Mike Zintak 
 
Absent: 
Fred Wescott 
 

Steve Chapman 
Pat Thompson, County Administrator 
Marilyn Hite Ross, State’s Attorney 
Dr. Sandra Martell, Public Health Administrator 
Dave Kurlinkus, Deputy State’s Attorney 
Carol Hartline, Attorney 
Tom Jakeway, Trial Court Administrator 
Anna Grzelak, Circuit Court 
Dave Kelley, County Board Member 
Burt Gerl, County Board Member 
 

AGENDA:       
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of June 17, 25 and 29, and July 15, 2020 Minutes 
D. Public Comment 
E. Resolution Approving Subcontractor Agreement for the Department of Justice Violence 

Against Women Grant 
F. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute a Memorandum of 

Agreement between Winnebago County, 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing 
Lives, Inc. 

G. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Independent 
Contractor Agreement for Services as Winnebago County Liaison between Winnebago 
County, Illinois and Tommy Meeks 

H. Other Matters 
I. Adjournment 

 
Mr. Fellars called the meeting to order at 5:46 PM.  
 
Motion to approve the minutes of June 17, 25 and 29, and July 15, 2020 
Moved:  Mr. Zintak, Seconded:  Ms. Goral. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Public Comment 
Mr. Fellars omitted reading the Public Comment section of the Agenda due to no one present to 
speak. 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

 
Resolution Approving Subcontractor Agreement for the Department of Justice Violence 
Against Women Grant 
Motion by Mr. Zintak and Seconded by Ms. Goral. 

• A discussion followed. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute a Memorandum of 
Agreement between Winnebago County, 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing 
Lives, Inc. 
and 
Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Independent 
Contractor Agreement for Services as Winnebago County Liaison between Winnebago 
County, Illinois and Tommy Meeks 

• Items F and G will be moved to the next Public Safety Committee meeting. 
Motion by Mr. Fellars and Seconded by Mr. Zintak.     
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Other Matters 
None 
 
Motion to Adjourn.  Moved:  Mr. Fellars, Seconded:  Mr. Zintak.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Amy Ferling 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety Committee Meeting 

Virtual Meeting - Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Thursday, October 15, 2020 

5:30 PM  
 

Present: Others Present: 
Angie Goral 
Dan Fellars 
Dorothy Redd 
Paul Arena 
 

Absent: 
Aaron Booker 
Fred Wescott 
Mike Zintak 
 

Pat Thompson, County Administrator 
Dave Kurlinkus, Deputy State’s Attorney 
Marilyn Hite Ross, State’s Attorney 
 
 

AGENDA:       
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Public Comment 
D. Resolution for Tommy Meeks 2020     
E. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute a Memorandum of 

Agreement Between Winnebago County, 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing 
Lives, Inc.  

F. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement with 
Rosecrance, Inc. for the Jail Alternative Treatment Program 

G. Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the 
Forest Preserves of Winnebago County for Police Services 

H.  Other Matters 
I.  Adjournment 

 
Mr. Fellars called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM.  
 
Public Comment 
Mr. Fellars omitted reading the Public Comment section of the Agenda due to no one present to 
speak. 
 
Resolution for Tommy Meeks 2020     

• A discussion followed.    
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute a Memorandum of 
Agreement Between Winnebago County, 17th Judicial Circuit Court and Remedies Renewing 
Lives, Inc.  



 

 

 Page 2  
  

• A discussion followed.    
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement with 
Rosecrance, Inc. for the Jail Alternative Treatment Program 

• A discussion followed.  
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the 
Forest Preserves of Winnebago County for Police Services 
Motion by Ms. Goral and Seconded by Mr. Arena. 

• A discussion followed.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Matters 
None 
 
Motion to Adjourn.  Moved:  Mr. Arena, Seconded:  Ms. Redd.   
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Amy Ferling 
Administrative Assistant 



 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 

Prepared By: Animal Services Department, Department Administrator Brett Frazier 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: February 17, 2021  

Ordinance Amendment Title:  Ordinance Amending Low Income Eligibility Verification Requirements and 
Adoption Fee Schedule at Animal Services     

County Code:   Winnebago County Code, Chapter 14 - Animals 

Board Meeting Date:   February 25, 2021 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    NA                           Appropriation Amount:   $ 0 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:    

 
Background Information:  
Currently county code requires that the Animal Services Department utilize WIC eligibility standards, including 

income and household size, in order to verify low-income status for residents attempting to access department 

low-income services.  These services include the spay/neuter voucher program and owner requested euthanasia.  

In order to assess eligibility, currently code requires that a resident prove eligibility by assembling documents 

that demonstrate household income and number of persons in the household so that our clerks can then assess if 

documentation is sufficient and if the resident is eligible.  This change would simply adopt the language of state 

statute related to these same animal related services and allow county residents who can prove they are eligible 

for the assistance programs noted in statute to also be approved for low-income services provided by the 

Animal Services Department.   

 

The statute refers to “low income residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security 

Disability Benefits Program” (Food Stamp Program is now called SNAP but is also still referred to often as 

Food Stamps).  The easiest way for those residents to prove eligibility for those programs would be to show that 

they are approved by those programs for those benefits with a card or approval/determination letter.  This 

allows our department to avoid redoing the work of eligibility verification already done by those programs.   

 

The dog adoption fee rate has not been adjusted in many years.  Even after this adjustment, the Animal Services 

Department’s dog adoption fee is low compared to other dog adoption facilities in the region.  A modest 

adjustment in dog adoption fee will cover more of the costs associated with the care and adoption of dogs and 

the operation of the department generally.  This adjustment will not have a negative impact on positive 

outcomes for dogs available for adoption at Animal Services nor will it negatively impact the number of days a 

dog spends at Animal Services prior to adoption.   

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


 
 

   
    Executive Summary 

 

 4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.wcasrock.org  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: bfrazier@wincoil.us 

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
Recommendation:  
To approve and adopt the amendment to county code as presented.  
 
 
Contract/Agreement:  
NA 
 
 
Legal Review:   
The State’s Attorney’s Office assisted in drafting the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Follow-Up: 
If approved, the Animal Services Department will update public information relating to the areas of code to be 
amended.  Staff will be trained on the new income eligibility verification requirements for Department 
services for which the verification of a household as low-income is required.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

http://www.wcasrock.org/
http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:RBNHAdministrator@wincoil.us


1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00110.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income only follows established WIC guidelinescounty residents who are 
eligible for the Food Stamp Program or Social Security Disability Benefits 
Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave KelleyAngie Goral                                Angie Goral Dave 
Kelley 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy ReddJas Bilich                               Dorothy Redd 
 Jas Bilich 
 



5 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



1 
 

County Board Meeting 
February 25, 2021 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BURT GERL 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2021 CO ___ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING ADOPTION FEE SCHEDULE AND LOW INCOME 

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AT ANIMAL SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
amend their ordinances related to the fee schedule for adopting dogs and low income 
eligibility verification at Animal Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances sets 

forth the fee schedule for adoptions and other services at Winnebago County Animal 
Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending increasing the fee for dog 

adoptions from $110.00 to $150.00 in order to cover more of the costs associated with 
adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, to align with the Animal Control Act and simplify the process of 

verifying the income of county residents who may be eligible for low income services, 
Animal Services is recommending an amendment to allow proof of eligibility for the 
Food Stamp Program or the Social Security Disability Program, rather than following 
established WIC guidelines. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-116 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 14-116. - Fee schedule. 

The following fees and charges shall be paid prior to the rendition of services or release 
of the animal: 

Service Fee 
(1)  Dog registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the dog has been spayed or neutered 1 , or 
the dog is under one year of age, annually .....$ 25.00 

b. If the dog is fertile, annually .....40.00 



2 
 

c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 
annually .....25.00 

d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 
(2)  Cat registration: ..... 

a. If the owner provides evidence that the cat has been spayed or neutered 1 , or the 
cat is under one year of age, annually .....20.00 

b. If the cat is fertile, annually .....30.00 
c. If the owner is in possession of a valid hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, 

annually .....20.00 
d. Hobby breeder and exhibitor permit, annually .....30.00 

(3)  Vaccination for reclaimed animals .....12.00 
(4)  Room and board: ..... 

a. Per day, per dog 2 .....12.00 
b. Per day, per cat 2 .....8.00 
c. Per day, per animal quarantined for biting 2 .....20.00 
d. Per day, per cat quarantined for biting 2 .....15.00 

(5)  Biting animals: 
a. Veterinary examination for biter animals .....25.00 
b. Owner release of biter animals .....No charge 

(6)  Handling charge for impounded animals: 
a. Animals wearing current registration tags, or having a department-approved 

identification implant, at the time of impoundment: ..... 
For first offense .....15.00 
For second offense .....50.00 
For any subsequent offense .....75.00 

b. Animals not wearing current registration tags, nor having a department-
approved identification implant, at the time of impoundment .....35.00 

(7)  Adoption: 
a. Dogs: All dogs .....150.00 
b. Cats: ..... 

Cats up to 1 year old .....85.00 
Cats 1 year and older .....40.00 
All dogs and cats shall be spayed or neutered, registered, vaccinated, and 
receive preventative health care before adoption. 

c. Exotic: 
Preventative health care .....20.00 

d. Small mammal: 
Preventative health care .....7.00 

(8)  Euthanasia per dog or cat at owner's request for low income only3: 
a. Cat, brought in to facility .....37.00 
b. Cat, pick up .....55.00 
c. Dog, brought in to facility .....50.00 
d. Dog, pick up .....60.00 

(9)  Owner release of unwanted animals: 
a. Where the owner is a resident of the county: 

1. Per adult dog .....25.00 



3 
 

2. Per adult cat .....20.00 
b. Where the owner is a resident of the county, per puppy or kitten under three 

months of age .....5.00 
c. For animals other than dogs or cats brought to the facility .....7.00 
d. For dog, cat or other animal picked up at owner's home in the county, per dog, 

cat or other animal .....35.00 
e. For each additional puppy or kitten under three months of age picked up at 

owner's home in the county .....5.00 
(10)  Disposal of dead animals: 

a. Dogs brought to the facility .....25.00 
b. Dogs picked up by officer .....45.00 
c. Cats brought to the facility .....15.00 
d. Cats picked up by officer .....35.00 

(11)  Duplicate license fee .....5.00 
(12)  Microchip per dog or cat .....35.00 
(13)  2nd offense owned running at large fees: 

a. Spay of dog .....175.00 
b. Neuter of dog .....145.00 
c. Additional fine .....25.00 

(14)  Low income only3spay/neuter voucher .....20.00 
 

1  Acceptable evidence of alteration consists of certification by the veterinarian 
performing the alteration procedure or a notarized statement made by the seller of 
the animal indicating that it had been spayed or neutered while in his/her 
possession. 
2  For any part of a day that the animal is in the custody of the shelter. 
3  Low income county residents who are eligible for the Food Stamp Program or 
Social Security Disability Benefits Program. 
 

The chairman of the county board is authorized to enact a temporary registration fee 
reduction at his or her discretion, in order to promote compliance with sections 14-
66 and 14-67 of this code, provided a) that any such reduction complies with Section 3 
of the Illinois Animal Control Act (510 ILCS 5/3) as now enacted, or hereafter 
amended, including maintaining a minimum differential often $10.00 between altered 
and unaltered animals, with $10.00 of that differential to be deposited county animal 
population control fund or in the state's pet population control fund and b) that any such 
reduction is enacted to assist low-income pet owners to become in compliance with 
sections 14-66 and 14-67 of this Code. 
 
The animal services administrator is authorized to modify adoption fees set forth in 
subsection (7) above, and room and board fees set forth in subsection (4) above, and 
handling charge fees set forth in subsection (6) above, to promote the reduction in the 
number of animals being held at the county shelter. The animal services administrator 
shall provide a report to the county administrator each month which sets forth the fees 
that have been modified, or waived in each subsection above, including the total values 
of modifications and waivers in each subsection. 

https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-66REINDO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH14AN_ARTIIIDOCA_DIV1GE_S14-67REINCA


4 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall provide 

a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the County Administrator and the 
Animal Services Administrator. 

 
   

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman     Burt Gerl, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Aaron Booker 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark     Brad Lindmark 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Tim Nabors      Tim Nabors 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Angie Goral      Angie Goral 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
    
  
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

 
  

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CRIME AND 
PUBLIC SAFTEY COMMISSION 

STRATEGIC PLAN 2020-2023 

 



 

Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission 

Strategic Plan 2020-2023 
 

Vision  

The Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission is an independent, viable working 
entity actively promoting and recommending positive systemic change to reduce and prevent 
crime in the community. 

 
 

Mission  

The mission of the Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission is to collaborate 
with criminal justice leaders in order to discover ways to: 

• Reduce and prevent crime 
• Improve public safety 
• Advocate for effective law enforcement 
• Promote an efficient criminal justice system 
• Annually review County Alternative Programs 

  



 

                     KEY FOCUS AREAS - 
Programs 

- Violence 
KEY FOCUS AREA: 1% Sales Tax - Alternative Justice Programs  

GOAL: The Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission seeks to reduce crime and 
violence by ensuring the fair and appropriate apportionment of the portion of funds collected 
through the 1% Public Safety Sales Tax which is to be directed toward alternative justice 
programs. 

OBJECTIVES: The Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission will: 

1. Identify the process for apportionment of 1% Public Safety Sales Tax dollars for 
alternative justice programming. 

2. Create a transparent process for evaluation of programs and funds allocation. 
 

3. Evaluate alternative justice programs for efficacy and value. 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. 
 

Action Items 
a) Explore current process and policy for 

1% Public Safety Sales Tax dollars for 
alternative justice programming 

b) Present objectives to Public Safety 
Committee and other appropriate 
committees/County Board 

2. 
 

Action Items 
a) Develop an evaluation process and 

action steps. 
b) Develop an application tool for 

agencies/programs. 

3. 
 

Action Items 
a)  Develop an evaluation tool, 

including reducing of recidivism. 
b) Make funding recommendations for 

1% Public Safety Sales Tax 



 

KEY FOCUS AREA: Children and Youth  

GOAL: The Winnebago County Crime and Public Safety Commission seeks to reduce and 
prevent crime and violence impacting children and youth. 

OBJECTIVES: 
1. Increase awareness of crime and violence impacting children and youth 

2. Identify and support evidence-based programs addressing crime and violence 
impacting children and youth 

ACTION ITEMS 

1. 
 

Action Items 
a) Collect and publicize data relating to 

the impact of crime and violence on 
youth 

b) Support the efforts of Law 
Enforcement and other community 
organizations in building trust 
between law enforcement and the 
community, focusing on children 
and youth. 

2. 
 

Action Items 
a) Support the Family Peace Center in 

efforts related to children and youth 
b) Review community programs 

addressing crime and violence 
impacting children and youth 

c) Identify and promote/support 
programs which are evidence-based 
and effective 

 






	Agenda
	Oct. 1, 2020 Public Safety Minutes
	Oct. 15, 2020 Public Safety Minutes
	Executive Summary - Amending Animal Services Ordinance
	Ordinance - Redline copy
	Ordinance - Clean copy
	Crime & Public Safety Commission Strategic Plan 2020-2023
	Preapproved Reimbursement for Court Technology Upgrades

